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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

The following statement, which should be considered in conjunction with the auditors’ responsibilities as presented m
the Independent Auditor’s Report, was prepated with a purpose to distingush auditors’ and management’s
responsibilities in relation to the financial statements of Life insurance company NOMAD LIFE JSC (the “Company™).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders” equity
for the year then ended, in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for:

propetly selecting and applying accounting policies;

applying proved and reasonable estimates and assumptions;

compliance with IFRS and the disclosure of all significant deviations from IFRS in the notes to the financtal
statermnents;

prepating of the financial statements on the going concern basis, that the Company will continue its activities in
the foresecable future.

Management is also responsible for:

designing, implementing and maintaining of effective and reliable functionality of internal control system;
maintaining of proper accounting system, allowing preparation of the Company’s financial position mnformation
at any time with reasonable accuracy, and to ensure compliance with IFRS,;

maintaining of accounting records in accordance with legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

adopting of measures within its competence to safeguatd assets of the Company; and

detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 were approved by management on
Apnl 18, 2014:

Acting Chairman of the Board ,/Z%

Shalgimbayev M.A.

Chief Accountant M,@%ﬂ{f’ Ké‘

Pyanova ILN.

Apul 18, 2014
Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Management and shareholders of Life insurance company NOMAD LIFE JSC

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Life insurance company NOMAD LIFE JSC (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“financial statements”).

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that ate frce from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial starements are free from matertal
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedutes selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud ot error. In making those risk assessments, the audiror
considers internal control televant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit ptocedutes that ate approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide our audit opinion.

© 2014 Grant Thornton. Al rights reserved.
Grant Thomton LLP in Kazakhstan is a member firm within Grant Thomton Intemational Ltd (Grant Thorton Intemational’). NO O 0 OO 2 3 6
Grant Thomton Intemational and the member firms are not & worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms independently. -
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the financial position of Life insurance
company NOMAD LIFE JSC as at December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Yerzhan D@()ss smbekov (‘ , Arman Chingilbayev
General Director Audit partner

Grant Thornton LLP

Auditor qualification certificate #MP-0000069 issued Auditor qualification certificate #MP-0000487 1ssued
by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Kazakhstan on January 20, 2012 Kazakhstan on October 12, 1999

State license for audit activity on the territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan: MOEO-2 Ne(000087 dated June 21, 2012

April 18, 2014
The Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty

© 2014 Grant Thornton. All rights reserved.
Grant Thornton LLP in Kazakhstan is a member firm within Grant Thornton Internalionat Ltg ' Grant Thomnton International). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by

the member firms independently.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

In thousands of tenge Note December 31,  December 31,
2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 5 295177 420,755
Amounts due from credit institutions 6 11,141,916 5,630,627
Reserve REPO operations 7 1,064,499 -
Available-for-sale investment securitics 8 3,545,830 1,720,923
Held-to-maturity investment securities 9 1,497,154 1,367,632
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 12 2,246,726 2,689,631
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 10 65,461 68,975
Unearned premiums reserve, reinsurer's shate 11 2,462,818 2,013,695
Insurance reserves, reinusret’s share 11 399,473 12,089
Corporate income tax asset 178,138 -
Deferred income tax asset 16 22,781 16,337
Other assets 13 142,654 107,212
‘TOTAL ASSETS L 23,062,627 14,047,876
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Insurance and reinsurance payables 14 838,674 515,883
Unearned premiums reserve 11 5,685,973 4,960,151
Insurance reserves 11 12,904,637 5,216,396
Corporate income tax payable - 94,028
~ Other labilities o 15 235,419 248,573
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 19,664,703 11,035,031
Share capital - 17 2,130,000 2,130,000
Awailable-for-sale securities revaluation reserve (45,753) (771
Retained earnings - ‘ e 1313677 8830616
TOTALEQUITY 3397924 3,012,845
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 23,062,627 14,047,876

Accompanying notes on pages 5 1o 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Acting Chairman of the Board

Chief Accountant

Aprl 18, 2014
Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty

-7 ! # e
v

Shalgimbayev M.A.

Ml cprte

Pyanova [LN.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

In thousands of tenge Note 2013 2012
Gross earned premiums 18 18,433,325 18,434,165
_Premiums ceded to reinsurance 18 _ (4442,430) (4,059,541
Premiums, net of reinsuret's share 13,990,895 14,374,624
Change in unearned premiums reserves 18 (276,699)  (2,934,039)
Premiums earned, net of reinsurer's share 13,714,196 11,440,565
Claims paid, total amount 20 (2,749,404) (6,742,929)
Claims paid, reinsurer's share 20 80,421 -
Change in claim reserves 20 (7,688,241) (3,473,313)
_ Change in claim reserves, reinsurer's share 2 387384 -
Net claims (9,969,900) (10,216,242
~ Other income from insurance, tantema e 996,790
Insurance income 3,744,296 3,221,113
Commisiion expense L 22 ~(3,197,926) ~(1,639,084)
Net commission income S (3,197,926) (1,639,084)
Interest income 21 910,837 380,506
Loss on umpairment of Held to maturity securitics 9 (13,521) (112,008)
_ Other operating income - - 12,148 2,791
Other income 909,464 271,289
Personnel expenses and other expenses (472,519) (353,422)
Operating expenses 23 (B17,63T) (496,356)
_Total operating expenses . o (990156) - (849,778)
Profit before income tax expense 465,678 1,003,540
_Corporate income taxexpense e B5061h)  @I7701)
Netincome 430061 785,839

Other comprehensive income
Unrealized loss on revaluation of sccurities (44,982 (47,672)
Total comprehensive income 385,079 738,167

Accompanying notes on pages 5 to 44 are an integral part of these financial stalements.

7 s
Acting Chairman of the Board A” }7{
Shalgimbayev M.:A.

Chief Accountant /Wz{ //{/'[:(9 fé‘

Pyanova ILN.

April 18,2014
Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

In thousands of tenge Note Share capital Investment Retained Total
available-for- earnings

sale revaluation

reserve
As of January 1, 2012 1,470,000 46,901 97T 1,614,678
Net income for the year S - - 785,839 785,839
Other comprebensive lss o e 47,672 - - _ (47,672)
Total comprehensive income - (47,672) 785,839 738,167
_Contiibution to share capital 660,000 - - 660,000
_Asof December 31,2012 17 2,130,000  (771) 883616 3,012,845
Net income for the year - - 430,061 430,061
_ Other womprebensive boss - (44982 - (44,982)
T'otal comprehensive income - (44,982) 430,061 385,079
As of December 31, 2013 17 2,130,000 (45,753) 1,313,677 3,397,924

Accompanying notes on pages 5 lo 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Acting Chairman of the Board

7 .
Vetr

Chief Accountant

Shalgimbayev M.A.

i A

April 18,2014
Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty

Pyanova ILN.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

In thousands of tenge Note 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax expense 465,678 1,003,540
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 10 26,356 21,413
Change m acrued mterest (322,884) (160,129)
Impairment of sccurities 9 13,521 112,008
Insurance reserves, net of reinsuret's share 11 7,577,556 6,407,372
(Increase)/decrease of operating assets:
Amounts due from credit institutions (5,234,962) (4,448,144)
Reverse repurchase agreemennts (1,063,011) 562,314
Insurance and reinsurance recewvables 442,905 (2,568,777)
Other assets (148,131) (37,442)
Increase/ (decrease) of operating liabilities:
Insurance and reinsurance payables 14 322,791 429123
QOther liabilitics 15 o (13,154) 138303
Net cash inflow from operalmg activity before interest received
and income tax paid 2,066,665 1,459,581
_Income taxpad ] - o Bu227) (145193)
_Net cash inflow from \ operating activities L 1,752,438 1,314,388
" CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets (22,938) (37,421)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 95 246
Purchase of available for sale investment securitics (1,808,207) (1,045,601)
Procceds from sale of held-to-maturity investment securities 247,990 -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investment securities -
Purchase of held-to-maturity mvestment secutitics (294,956) (650,138)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . (,878,016)  (1,732,914)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

_ Proceeds from issuc of shares - - 660,000

_Net cash flows provided blﬁnanung_acuvmcs o B ; ] L - @60 OOO
Change in cash and cash equivalents (125,578) 241,474

_ Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of the year 420,755 179,281
Cash and cash equivalents, ending of the year 5 295,177 420,755

In 2012 and 2013 the amounts of the interest received were 910,875 and 380,506 thousands of tenge and interest paid
amounts were 610,951 and 220,377 thousands of tenge respectively.

Accompanying notes on pages 5 to 44 are an integral parl of these financial siaterments.

r// 7 -
Acting Chatrman of the Board Ve
Shalgimbayev M.A.

Chief Accountart /ﬂ%’f/{/ﬂfé

Pyanova ILN.

April 18, 2014
Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Life insurance company NOMAD LIFE JSC (the “Company”) primarily registered in Republic of
Kazakhstan in March 2008 as Life insurance company Astana-Finance JSC in accordance with legislation of
Republic of Kazakhstan. The Company was re-registered on January 10, 2012 (registration certificate 91075-
1910 - JSC) and given a new name Life msurance company NOMAD LIFE JSC.

The Company has license Ne2.2.47 from February 1, 2012, which gives a right to perform business activity in
the following scctors:

life insurance and annuity insurance;

voluntary general insurance: accident insurance and health insurance;
obligatory general insurance: employee insurance from accidents;
re-insurance activity.

This license was given by the Committee on control and supervision of the financial market and financial
organization of National bank of the Republic of IKazakhstan (“KFN”).

The Company’s registered address is 050040, Satpayev st., 30A, block #1, Almaty, the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

As of December 31, 2013 the number of personnel in the Company was 178 employees (2012: 176
employees).

As of December 31, 2013 sharcholder of the Company was “Insurance group “Nomad” LLP (100%), final
beneficiary , Mynbayev A.S. (2012:Mr Mynbayev A.S. (65%), resident of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Mr..
Sultan N.S (25 %), resident of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Mrs. Mamysheva A.A. (5%), resident of the
Republic of Kazakhstan and Mrs. Salamatova S.S. (5%), resident of the Republic of Kazakhstan).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statcments have been prepared on a histotical cost basis, except as described in the accounting
policies and the Notes to these financial statements. The Company maintains its accounting records in
Kazakhstani Tenge (“Tenge” or “KZT”). All values in these financial statements are rounded to the nearcst
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Going concern

The Company’s management believes that the Company will be able to generate sufficient cash to pay its
debts as and when they fall due. The management of the Company does not have any intention or necessity
to liquidate or significantly reduce the size of its business.

Operating environment

Economy of the Republic of Kazakhstan continues to be characterized by certain signs of a developing
country. These signs include, but are not limited to the existence of a currency that does not have free
convertibility outside the country and the low liquidity of debt and equity securities on stock exchanges.
Prospects for future economic stability of the Republic of Kazakhstan significantly depend on the
cffectiveness of economic measures undertaken by the government, as well as the development of legal,
political, and control systems, i.e. the circumstances that are beyond the Company’s control.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FORYEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Tenge, which 1s the functional currency and presentation currency
of the Company.

Transactions in foreign curtencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the market rate prevailing
at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curtencies are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. All foreign exchange differences are included to the
statement of comprehensive income as income or expense for the period.

Weighted average currency exchange rates established by the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (“ICASE”) are used
as official currency exchange rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The currency exchange rates of KASE as of December 31, 2013 were 154.06 Tenge to 1 US Dollar. These
rate was used to translate monetary assets and liabilities denominated in US Dollars as of December 31, 2013
(December 31, 2012: 150.74 Tenge to 1 US Dollar).

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the
Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Insurance contracts are further classified as being either with or without discretionary participation features
(DPF). DPF is a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that
ate:

. Likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
. The amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the issuer;
. That are contractually based on the profit or loss of the company.

Discretionary Participation Featares (DPF)

A DPF is a contractual right that gives holders of these contracts the right to receive as a supplement to
guarantced benefits, significant additional benefits which are based on the performance of the assets held
within the DPF portfolio whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Company. Under
the terms of the contracts surpluses in the DPF funds can be distributed to policyholders and shareholders
based on proportion established by Board of Directors. The Company has the discretion over the amount
and timing of the distribution of these surpluses to policyholders. All DPF liabilities including unallocated
surpluses, both guaranteed and discretionary, at the end of the reporting period are held within insurance
contract habilities as appropriate.

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the
retnsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related retnsurance contract.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Reinsurance (continued)

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment atises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a
result of an event that occurred aftet initial recognition of the reinsurance assets that the Company may not
receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable
impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
Fair value measurement

The Company estimates financial instruments, such as available- for-sale securities, at fair value at cach
reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be obtained from the sale of an asset or paid as a result of transfer of a
liability 1n a transaction which is performed in the usual manner between market participants at the estimation
date. Fair value estimation assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer a liability occurs:

. either on the main market for the asset or liability;
. or, in the absence of the main market, the most advantageous matket for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured ot disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 1s
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 ~ Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable;

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For asscts and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Offsetting of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. This is not generally the case with
master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of
financial position.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IFRS (IAS) 39, are classified into the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVIPL?); Held-to-maturity (“HTM”); available-for-sale (“AFS”) and receivables.

Classification of financial assets to one category or another depends on the nature and purpose of what
happens in the time of iniual recognition.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (continued)

At initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value. In the case of investments not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the reflection in reporting is their fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs. At initial recognition, financial assets, the Company determines the
classification , and subsequently can reclassify financial asscts 1n certain cases.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period established by regulation
or convention in the market (trading “regular conditions”) are recognized on the trade date, ie the date that
the Company commits itself to buy or sell the asset.

Date of recognition

All regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, ie on the date when the
asset is delivered to the Company or the Company delivered asset. Regular purchases of financial
instruments are subsequently measured at fair value between the date of the transaction and settlement date
are accounted for in the same way as for acquired instruments. Regular purchases or sales - purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and current accounts.
Deposits

In the normal course of business, the Company maintains deposits in banks for different periods. The
deposits are valued at amortized cost using the effective interest rate,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-dertivatives that are cither designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (2) held to maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Listed shares and listed redeemable notes are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated at
fair value. The Company also has investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market but
that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value (because the Company management
considers that fair value can be reliably measured). Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve, with the
exception of other-than-temporary impairment losses, intetest calculated using the effective interest method,
dividend income and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised in profit or
loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss in the period of
disposal or impaitment.

The fair value of AFS monetaty assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and
losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset.
AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured stated at cost less impairment losses identified at the end of cach reporting
period.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Held to maturity investments

[leld to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity
investments arc measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairments.

If the Company were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held to maturity investments
before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would
have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. Furthermore, the Company would be prohibited from classifying
any financial asset as held to maturity during the current financial year and following two financial years.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurted after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors are experiencing significant financial
difficulties, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the high probability of bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, as well as evidence on the basis of information from the observed market decrease in
the estimated future cash flows such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Detecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a finandial assct or part of a group of similar financial assets)
1s derecognized when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement;

. and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Companny has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has ncither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Insurance receivables

[nsurance reccivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Review on impairement of balance of Insurance receivables always
performed when there are events or circumstances which indicate that carrying value cannot be reimbursed
and loss from impairement is recognized in statement of comprehensive income.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets, as described in
derecognition of financial assets have been met.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are cartied at initial cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the following estimated useful lives:

Categories of property, plant and equipment Estimated

useful life
Computers 3 yeats
Vehicles 5 years
Software 5 years
Other 5 years

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
financial year-end. Costs related to repairs and renewals ate charged when incurred and included mn other
operating expenses, unless they qualify for capitalization.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include software and licenses. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amorttization and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
finite. Intangible assets are amortized over the useful economic lives of 5 years and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortization periods and methods
for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Intangible assets are
included as a component of other assets.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
cvents, and it is probable that an outflow of tesoutces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Where the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under insurance agreement, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Expenses related to
provisions are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, net of reimbursement.

Deductions from employee benefits

The Company holds 10% of the wages of their employees, but not more than 139,950 tenge per employce in
2013 (in 2012: 10%, but not more than 130,793 tenge) as contributions to their pension funds.

The Company does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state pension system of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, which requires an employer to make deductions calculated as a percentage of
current gross salary payments, such deductons are expensed in the period in which the related salaries ate
carned and are included in salaries and employee benefits in the statement of comprehensive income. The
Company shall pay the social tax to the budget of the Republic of Kazakhstan for their employees. In
addition, the Company has no other pensions requiring accrual.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation

The current income tax expensc is calculated in accordance with the regulations of the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

Company pays social tax to the budget of the Republic of Kazakhstan in accordance with the laws of the
Republic of Kazakhstan for a flat rate of 11% of salary.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recogniton of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax assct to be utlized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

“Reserve REPO” contracts

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse repo”) are recorded in the statement of financial
position. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the term of
the contracts “repo” on an effective yield basis.

Reinsutance assets

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the
reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment arses during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there 1s objective evidence as a
result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets that the Company may not
receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable
impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in
the income statement.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the income statement immediately at the date of
purchase and are not amortized. Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for ceded reinsurance.
Reinsurance assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transfetred to another party.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These
liabilities are measured by using the gross premium method. The liability is determined as the sum of the
discounted value of the expected future benefits, claims handling and policy administration expenses, less the
discounted value of the expected premiums that would be required to meet the future cash outflows based
on the valuation assumptions used. Furthermore, the liability for life insurance contracts comprises provision
for claims outstanding, which includes an estimate of the incurred claims that have not yet been reported to
the Company. Adjustments to the liabilities at each reporting date are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income in gross change in insurance contract liabilities. The Labulity is derecognized when the
contract expires, is discharged or 1s cancelled.

Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, an assessment is made of whether the recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate by using a liability adequacy test. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient to
meet future benefits and expenses. In performing the adequacy test, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as claims handling and policy administration
expenses, as well as investment income from asscts backing such liabilities, are used. Any inadequacy ts
recorded in the income statement by establishing an unexpired risk provision. In subsequent pertods, the
liability for a block of business that has failed the adequacy test is based on the assumptions that are
established at the time of the loss recognition. The assumptions do not include a matgin for adverse
deviation. Impairment losses resulting from liability adequacy testing can be reversed in the future years if the
impairment no longer exists.

Liability adequacy tests are performed for each line of business of insurance portfolio on the basis of
estimates of future claims costs.

For long duration contracts, if actual experience regarding investment yields, mortality, morbudity,
terminations or expense indicates that existing contract liabilities, along with the present value of future gross
premiums, will not be sufficient to cover the present value of future benefits, then a premium defictency s
recognized.

Non-life insurance contract liabilities

Non-life insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision and the provision for unearned
ptemium and the provision for premium deficiency. The outstanding claims provision is based on the
estimated ulimate cost of all claims reported but not settled at the reporting date and incurred but not
reported (IBNR), together with related claims handling costs. Delays can be experienced in the notification
and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty
at the reporting date. The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim
projection techniques, based on empirical data. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money.
No provision for equalization or catastrophe reserves is recognized. The liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation to pay a claim expites, is discharged or 15 cancelled.

The provision for uncarned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable that relates
to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognized when contracts are
entered into and premiums arc charged, and is brought to account as premium income over the term of the
contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the contract.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Non-life insurance contract liabilities (continued)

The outstanding claims provision of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date arc measured on
a case-by-case basis, based on the facts and circumstances available at the time the provisions are established.
The estimates reflect managements informed judgment of claims based on general insurance reserving
practices and knowledge of the nature and value of a specific type of claim. These provisions are regulatly re-
evaluated in the ordinary course of the settlement process and adjustments are made as new information
becomes available.

IBNR provisions are established to recognize the estimated cost of losses that have occurred but where the
Company has not yet been notified. Since nothing is known about the occurrence, the Company relies on its
past experience, adjusted for current trends and any other relevant factors. IBNR provisions are estimates
based on prudent actuarial and statistical projections of the expected cost of the ultimate settlement and
administration of claims. The analyses are based on facts and circumstances known at the time. Trends
relating to claim frequency, severity and time lag in reporting are examples of factors used in projecting the
IBNR provisions. IBNR provisions are reviewed and revised periodically as additional information becomes
available and actual claims are reported.

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over
unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance
technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums (less
related deferred acquisition costs on attracting new pohcyholdcrs) is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income by setting up a provision for premium deficiency.

Insurance and reinsurance payables

Payables on direct insurance business comprise insurance benefits duc but not yet paid, premium refunds not
paid and commissions due to agents. Payables are expressed at actual amount to be paid.

Payables on reinsurance business comprise net reinsurance premiums due to reinsurers and reinsurance
brokers in connection with reinsurance business ceded.

Share capital

Share capital is recognized at initial cost.

Lease

Operating - Company as lessee

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term and included into other operating expenses.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Gross premiums

Gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts with DPF are recognized as revenue when payable by
the policyholder. For single premium business, tevenue is recognized on the date on which the policy is
effective.

Gross general insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of
covet provided by contracts enteted into during the accounting period. They are recognized on the date on
which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments atising in the accounting pertod for
premiums receivable in respect of business written in ptior accounting periods. Premiums collected by
intermediaries, but not yet recetved, are assessed based on estimates from underwriting or past experience and
are included in premiums written. The proportion which relates to the subsequent periods is recognized as
unearned premiums reserve,

Unecarned premiums ate those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after
the reporting date. Uncarned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Preminms ceded

Gross premiums ceded on life insurance contracts are recognized as an expense on the earlier of the date
when premiums are payable ot when the policy becomes effective.

Gross general reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into during the period and ate recognized on the date on which the policy
incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods
of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are calculated proportionally on daily basis.
Proportion related to the future periods is accounted as Unearned premiums Reserve.

Commission expenses

Commission expense paid to agents and brokers that a vary and directly attributable to insurance contracts.
Commission is recognized as expenses in the period when such service was received (Note 22).

Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues and is calculated by
using the effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield
of the financial asset or liability are recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the

instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment s established. For listed
securities, this is the date the security 1s listed as ex dividend.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts with DPF include the cost of all claims arising during
the year including internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on DPF contracts. Changes in the gross valuation of
insurance contract liabilities with DPF are also included. Death claims and surrenders are tecorded on the
basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due.

General insurance claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, the related
internal and external claims handling costs that are directly telated to the processing and scttlement of claims.

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the
terms of the relevant contract.

New and revised IFRSs affecting amounts reported in the financial statements

In the current year, the Company adopted the following new and revised IFRSs, issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (hereinafter “IASB”), for which an application was mandatory in 2013.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to sct-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in evaluating
the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
The disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreements, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. These
amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The application of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the
tair value measurements carried out by the Company.

IFRS 13 also requires specific disclosutes on fair values, some of which replace existing disclosure requirements
in other standards, including IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The Company provides these
disclosures in Note 25.

Amendments to IAS 1 Changes to the Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income. Items
that could be reclassified to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net losses or gains on
available-for-sale financial asscts) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified (for
example, revaluation of buildings). The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the
Company’s financial position ot performance.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Amendments to TAS 1 Clarification of the Requirement for Comparative Information

These amendments clarify the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information. The Company must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the
minimum required comparative period. The amendments clarify that the opening statement of financial
position, presented as a result of retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in financial statements
does not have to be accompanied by comparative information in the related notes. The amendments affect
presentation only and have no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The IASB has published amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits, effective for annual pertods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, which involve major changes to the accounting for employee benefits, including
the removal of the option for deferred recognition of changes in pension plan assets and labilities (known as
the “corridor approach™). In addition, these amendments will limit the changes in the net pension asset
(liability) recognized in profit or loss to net interest income (expense) and service costs. These amendments
had no impact on the Company’s financial position.

New and revised IFRS — issued but not effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Company. Management of the Company anticipates that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s accounting policies for the first period beginning after the
cffective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the Company’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new
standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects two of the three phases of the IASB project on replacement of IAS 39 and applies
to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and hedge accounting. The
standard has no mandatory effective date and may be applied voluntarily. The adoption of IFRS 9 will have
an effect on the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial assets, but will not have an impact
on classification and measurements of the Company’s financial liabilities. 'The Company will quantify the
effect when the remaining part of the standard containing guidance on impairment of financial assets is
ssued.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics — Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the criteria
for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. These amendments are not expected to be relevant
to the Company.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)

Interpretation clarifies that the Company recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identificd by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a
minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
The Company does not expect that IFRIC 21 will have a material impact on its financial statements.

Amendments to [AS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual petiods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Company has not novated its derivatives during the current period.
However, these amendments would be considered for future novations.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
asset or liability affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has used its judgments and made
estimates in determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant use of
judgments and estimates are as follows:

Allowance for bad debt

The determination of allowance for bad debt requires from the management assumptions based on the best
estimates of the Company’s ability to realize these assets. Due to changes in overall economy and other
similar circumstances after the reporting date, the management can make estimations that can differ from
estimations made during the preparation of these financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are assessed at each reporting date and are adjusted according to the likelihood of
sufficient taxable profits available in the future, against which all or part of the asset may be offsct.
Assessment of that probability includes judgments based on the expected performance.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company considers useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. Estimation of the useful life of the asset is dependent on factors such as the economic use,
program for repair and maintenance, technological improvement and other business conditions. Management
review of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets reflects the relevant
information at the date of these financial statements.

Uncertainty of estimates
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has used its judgments and made

estimates in determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant use of
judgments and estimates:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Taxation

Tax, cutrency and customs legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan is subject to varying interpretations, and
changes, which can occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the
transactions and activity of the Company may be challenged by the relevant regional and state authortties. As
such, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review
by the authorities in respect of taxes for five calendar years proceeding the year of review. Under certain
circumstances reviews may cover longer pertods.

Fair value of financial instruments

As described in Note 26, for estimation of fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses method,
which takes into account primarily data which is not based on the market data. In Note 25 there is detatled
information about key assumption used in estimation of fair value of financial instruments as well as detatled
analysis of sensitivity of estimates in regard to these assumptions. The management believes that selected
methods of estimations and used assumptions are appropriate for fair value estimation.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities

The liability for life insurance contracts is either based on current assumptions or on assumptions established
at inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time. All contracts are subject to a liability
adequacy test, which reflect management's best current estimate of future cash flows.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidity, longevity, expenses and discount rates. The
Company bases mortality and morbidity on standard and national mortality industry tables which reflect
historical experiences, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s unique risk exposure, product
characteristics, target markets and own claims severity and frequency experiences. For those contracts that
insure risk related to longevity, prudent allowance is made based on established mortality levels.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income atising from the assets backing life insurance
contracts. These estimates are based on current market returns, as well as expectations about future economic
and financial developments.

Assumptions on future expense are based on either level of expenses existing at the date of issuance of
insurance contract for life insurance contracts, or statutory level of expenses for annuity insurance contracts.

Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the Company's own risk exposure.

The carrying value at the reporting date of life insurance contracts liabilities 15 525,017 thousands tenge (2012:
18,231 thousands tenge), the carrying value of annuity insurance labilities is 8,157,201 thousands tenge (2012:
4,216,680 thousands tenge).

Non-life insurance contract liabilities

For non-life insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims
reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet reported, at
the reporting date (IBNR). It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be
established with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the Lability in the
statement of financial position.

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as the Chain Ladder method.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Valuation of insurance contract liabilities (continued)
Non-life insurance contract liabilities (continued)

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a company's past claims development expetience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on
the observed development of eatlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly
analyzed by accident years, by significant business lines and claim types. In most cases, no explicit
assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used
are those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based.

Similar judgments, estimates and assumptions are employed in the assessment of adequacy of provisions for
uncarned premium. The carrying value as of 31 December 2013 for these general insurance contract
liabilities is 5,685,973 thousands tenge (2012: 4,960,151 thousands tenge).

Allowance for impairment of insurance receivable and reinsurance assets

‘The Company regularly reviews its insurance reccivables and reinsurance assets to assess impairment.
lrrecoverable amounts and specific credit risks are written off by charging directly against gross premiums.
Allowances for impairment based on past experience are nccessary in respect of recetvables due from
policyholders and agents/brokers on direct insurance and in respect of counterparties on reinsurance.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVELANTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year, included in the statement of cash flows are as
follows:

In thousands of tenge December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Cash on cutrent bank accounts 167,016 420,594
Cash on hand . 128,161 161

295,177 420,755

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 cash and cash equivalents comprised current accounts in Kazakhstani
banks and were denominated in Tenge.

6. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
As of 31 December 2013, amounts due from credit institutions comprise of time deposits with Kazakh

banks generating interest at rates ranging from 4% to 9% (2012: from 4.5% to 9%) per annum and mature in
January 2014 — November 2016 (2012: November 2015) and deposits were denominated in Tenge.
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6. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

In thousands of tenge

Interest rate

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012

Tsesnabank JSC 9% 1,906,750 400,000
HomeCredit Bank JSC 9% 1,360,309 -
Temirbank JSC 6.5%-8.5% 1,247,087 785,988
Eurasian Bank JSC 6.5%-9% 1,110,390 1,029,140
Kazkommertsbank JSC 4% 1,035,115 -
DeltaBank JSC 7.5%-9% 1,066,100 623,844
AlfaBank JSC 7%-7.75% 1,063,000 370,732
Sberbank [SC % 709,770 -
RBK Bank JSC 9% 500,000 -
KassaNova Bank JSC 8% 402,667 402,667
Bank CenterCredit JSC 6% 390,728 369,512
AstaCreditBank JSC 9% 350,000 1,000,000
Kazlnvestbank JSC 7% - 417,344
_ATFBank ]SC 7 - 8% - 231,400
Total - o 11,141,916 5,630,627

Accrued interest included in amounts due from credit institutions is 428,368 thousand of tenge as of
December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: 152,041 thousand of tenge).

7. RESERVE REPO OPERATIONS

In 2013, the Company entered into reverse repurchase agrcements on Kazakhstan Stock Exchange. The
subject of these agreements were treasury bills and shates of Kazakhstani companies, which fair value as of
December 31, 2013 amounted to 1,064,499 thousand of tenge, matuting in January 2014, which are not for
resale (2012: no reverse reputrchase operations).

8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Available-for-sale investments securities comptise:

In thousands of tenge December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Debt securities:

Corporate bonds and shares of Kazakhstani 1ssuers 2,197,115 1,093,067

Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani banks 688,272 233,569

Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 660,443 394,287

Total 3,545,830 1,720,923

Including:

In thousands of tenge December 31,  December 31,
2013 2012

Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani issuers

National company Kazakhstan engineering JSC 763,607 751,355

Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC 725,363 8

NC Food Contract Corporation JSC 617,632 240,390

Atameken Agro JSC 90,406 101,207

Shares

Fund of guaranteed insurance payments JSC - ] 107 107

2,197,115 1,093,067
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8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

In thousands of tenge December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani banks:
Halyk Bank Kazakhstan JSC 459,757 -
Sberbank of Russia JSC 196,162 197,984
Bank CenterCredit [SC 32,350 35,582
_ATEBankJSC U U -
688,272 233,569

As of December 31, 2013, investments available for sale, included accrued interest in the amount of 48,784

thousand of tenge (2012: 19,033 thousand of tenge).
9. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS SECURITIES

Held-to-maturity investments securities comprise:

In thousands of tenge December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
Debt securities:
Cotporate bonds of Kazakhstant 1ssuers 1,049,148 1,198,740
Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani banks 576,724 284,097
_Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan L 50,133 50,125
1,676,005 1,532,962
_Less — Allowance for impairment o (178,851)  (165,330)
1,497,154 1,367,632
Including:
In thousands of tenge December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani issuers
Kazakhstan Mortgage Company JSC 662,735 662,774
Astana-estate JSC 142,086 128,565
Central Astan Energy Company JSC 112,063 114,319
Mangistauskaya Energy Distribution Company JSC 56,981 59,966
Ekoton + JSC 38,518 39,665
Burlingazstroy JSC 36,765 36,765
NC Food Contract Corporation JSC - 156,686
_Concern Tsesna Astyk LLP S -
1,049,148 1,198,740
_ Less — Allowance for impairment I S (178,851)  (165,330)
870,297 1,033,410

In thousands of tenge December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
Corporate bonds of Kazakhstani banks
Sbetbank of Russia JSC 485,088 192,764
Eurasian bank JSC B S B 91,636 91,333
576,724 284,097

As of December 31, 2013, held-to-maturity investment sccurities included accrued interest in amount of

25,023 thousands tenge (2012: 32,665 thousands tenge).



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

9. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

The movement in the allowance for held-to-maturity investment securities was as follows:

In thousands of tenge

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
January 1 (165,330) (53,322)
Chage N @20 (112008
December 31 (178,851) (165,330)

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company identified objective evidence of impairment in
respect of “Astana-estate” JSC in connection with which the impairment provision was increased by the
amount of 112,008 thousands of tenge. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recognized
a gain of 13,521 thousands of tenge as coupon for “Astana-estate” JSC securities, on which also established

an additional rescrve of the same amount.

10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013

and 2012 was as follows:

In thousands of tenge Computers Vehicles Other Software Total
Carrying amount at Januar 1, 2012 3,161 1250 8,828 39,975 53,214
Additions 7,902 06,407 12,416 10,696 37,421
Disposals (55) - (192) - (247)
Depreciation charge o eoss) 08y (5320)  (12043)  (21413)
_Carrying amount at December 31,2012~ 8050 6,574 15,723 38,628 68,975
Additons 3,403 5,689 6,717 7,129 22,938
Disposals - - (96) - (96)
_Depreciation charge . (4339  (®76)  (6332)  (14,809)  (26,356)
Carrying amount at December 31,2013~ 7,14 11,387 16012 30,948 65,461
Cost 15,501 10,355 28,889 61,457 116,202
_Accumulated depreciation (7,451  (3,781) (13,166)  (22,829)  (47,227)
_Carrying amount at December 31, 2012 8,050 6,574 15,723 38,628 68,975
Cost 18,902 12,096 34,459 68,580 134,043
_Accumulated depreciation . (11,788)  (709)  (18447)  (37.038)  (68,582)
Carrying amount at December 31, 2013 7,114 11,387 16,012 30,948 65,461

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Company did not have

collateral.
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FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBIER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

11.

INSURANCE RESERVES

Insurance reserves by class of insurance:

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2013
Reserve on annuity insurance 8,157,201 - 8,157,201
Reserve on life insurance 525,017 - 525,017
Reserve on accident insurance 126 - 126
Reserve on general insurance 9908266 (2862291) 7045975
Insurance contract liabilities 18,590,610 (2,862,291) 15,728,319
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
Reserve on annuity insurance 4,216,680 - 4,216,680
Reserve on life insurance 18,231 - 18,231
Reserve on accident msurance 7G - 70
Rescrve on general wnsurance 5,941,566 _(2,025,784) 3915782
Insurance contract liabilities 10,176,547 (2,025,784) 8,150,763
Insurance reserves by type of liability:
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2013
Unearned premium reserve 5,685,973 (2,462,818) 3,223,155
Reserve on not-incurred expenses 8,544,157 - 8,544,157
Reported but not settled reserve 2,709,133 (399,473) 2,309,660
Incurred but note reported resctve 1,519,601 - 1,519,601
Incurred but not reported losses on life insurance contracts 124,245 - 124,245
_Other reserves . S 7,501 - 7,501
Insurance contract liabilities 18,590,610 (2,862,291 15,728,319
In thousands of tenge [nsurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
Unearned premium teserve 4,960,151 (2,013,695) 2,946,456
Reserve on not-incurred expenses 4,223.220 - 4,223,220
Reported but not settled reserve 539,999 {12,089) 527,910
Incurred but note reported reserve 441,486 - 441,486
Other reserves e § ) - n6e%N
Insurance contract liabilities 10,176,547 (2,025,784) 8,150,763
Reserves on life insurance and annuity insurance can be analyzed as follows:
1n thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net
confract share December 31,
liabilities 2013
With DPF 1,043,353 1,043,353
- WithowePF 7,638,865 - 7,6388065
Total 8,682,218 - 8,682,218




LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

11. INSURANCE RESERVES (CONTINUED)

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
With DPF 859,959 - 859,959
~ Without DPF e 3,374,952 - - 3374952
Total 4,234,911 ] 4,234,911
Changes in liabilities under contracts of annuity and life insurance during the year are as follows:
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2013
Tanvary 1,20 T apmaon — - azmon
Premiums written in the year 8,052,623 - 8,052,623
Liabilities paid for death, maturity and surrender, benefits and
claims (932,036) - (932,036)
Change in losses that occurred in previous years of the loss (5,962) - (5,962)
_Commission expenses (2,667,318) (2,667,318)
December 31, 2013 8,682,218 8,682,218
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
_January1,2012 1,729,840 - 1,729,840
Premiums written in the year 9,607,020 {(2,366) 9,604,654
Liabilities paid for death, maturity and surrender, benefits and
claims (6,657,546) - (6,657,5406)
Change in losses that occurred in previous yeats of the loss 67,093 2,366 69,459
Comnussion expenses - o 514%ey - (511,496)
December 31, 2012 4,234,911 - 4,234,911
Provision for not incurred losses («NTL») can be analyzed as follows:
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2013
January 1 - a0 423
Losses occurred in the current year loss 4,320,937 4,320,937
Change in losses that occurred in previous years loss (924,402) - (924,402)
Adjustment for losses incurred in previous years loss due to
changes in assumptions - - -
Losses paid during the year 924402 - 924,402
December 31 8,544,157 - 8,544,157
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
_January 1 1,722586 - 1,722,586
Losses occurred in the current year loss 2,500,634 - 2,500,634
Change in losses that occurted in previous years loss (6,656,985) - (6,656,985)
Adjustment for losses incurred in previous years loss due to
changes in assumptions - - -
Losses paid during the year 6,656,985 - 6656985
December 31 4,223,220 ] 4,223,220




LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

11. INSURANCE RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Provision for losses claimed by policyholders but not settded (“RBNS”, “IBNR”) can be analyzed as follows:

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
January 1, 2013 981,485 (12,089) 969,396
Losses occurred in the current year 3,371,494 (387,384) 2,984,110
Change in losses that occurred in previous years (1,825,062) - (1,825,002)
Adjustment for losses incurred in previous years loss due to
changes in assumptions - - -
Losses paid during the year ~ 1,825,062 - 1,825,062
December 31, 2013 4,352,979 (399,473) 3,953,506
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share  December 31,
liabilities 2012
~January 1, 2012 ] L L1154 - 1,154
Losses occurred in the current year 980,331 (12,089) 968,242
Change in losses that occurred in previous yeats (85,383) - (85,383)
Adjustment for losses mcurred in previous years loss due to
changes in assumptions - - -
Losses paid during the year - 85383 s 85,383
December 31, 2012 981,485 (12,089) 969,396

In 2013 and 2012, the Company used the following assumptions for the calculation of the allowance for all

annuity insurance contracts:

2013

2012

Discount rate

The effective interest rate

Costs of premiums

Costs from payments

Indexation rate of insurance payments
Probability of mortality

Annuity insurance

- Men (ages 0-111)

- Women (ages 0-111)

0.39%-6%
0%-3%
0%-3%

6%-19.45%

3,8%-6%
0%-3%
0%-3%

7.5%-19.45%

0.0001904 - 1
0.0000952 - 1

0.0001904 - 1
0.0000952 - 1

Provision for general insurance contracts can be analyzed as follows:

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net

contract share December 31,

liabilities 2012
Reported but not settled reserve 2,702,818 (399,473) 2,303,345
Incurred but not reported reserve 1,519,601 1,519,601
Reserves on contract liabilities 4,222,419 (399,473) 3,822,946
Unearned premium reserve 5685973 (2,462,818) 3,223,155
Total 9,908,392 (2,862,291) 7,046,101




LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

11.  INSURANCE RESERVES (CONTINUED)

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share December 31,
liabilities 2012
Reported but not settled reserve 539,999 (12,089) 527,910
_Incurred but not reported reserve o - 441486 - 441480
Reserves on contract liabilities 081,485 (12,089) 969,396
_Unearned premium reserve o 4,960,451 (2,013,695) 2,946,456
Total 5,941,636 (2,025,784) 3,915,852
The provision for unearned premiums may be analyzed as follows:
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net
contract share
liabilities
_January 1, 2013 4,960,151 (2,013,695) 2,946,456
Premiums written for the year 10,147,011 (4,442,430) 5,704,581
OQutward reinsurance premiums written for the year 233,691 - 233,691
Premiums earned during the year (9,488,895) 3,993,307 (5,495,588)
Premiums earned on outward reinsurance during the year (165,985y - (165985)
December 31, 2013 5,685,973 (2,462,818) 3,223,155
Inn thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsurer’s Net
contract share
liabilities
_January 1, 2012 2 - 12,397
Premiums written in the year 8,827,145 (4,057,175) 4,769,970
_ Premiums earned during the year . (3,8793%91) 2043480 (1,835911)
December 31, 2012 4,960,151 (2,013,695) 2,946,456

12. INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Insurance receivables includes:

In thousands of tenge December 31,  December 31,
2013 2012
Recetvables from policyholders 2,211,936 2,636,793
Recetvables from reinsurers ) e 34,790 52838
Total 2,246,726 2,689,631

On December 31, 2013 and 2012 insurance and reinsurance receivables were denominated in Tenge.

13.  OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise:

In thousands of tenge December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Prepayment of assessed contributions in JSC “TFFund of Guaranteed Insurance Payments” 54,734 -
Raw materials and supplics 30,845 23,791
Prepayments 27,398 57,675
Short-term debt of employees 6,206 14,777
Other prepaid expenses 6,071 4,073
Prepayment of taxes and mandatory payments to the budget 2,775 2,842
Others e 14,625 4054
Total 142,654 107,212
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

14.  INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE PAYABLES

Insurance and retnsurance payables comprise:

In thousands of tenge

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Due to reinsurers 676,017 481,666
Due to insurance agents and brokers 146,346 28,597
_Due to policyholders - 1631 5,620
Total 838,674 515,883

15.  OTHER LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities are as follows:

In thousands of tenge

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Other financial liabilities:
Trade payables to suppliers 17,698 14,130
_Payables to Fund of guaranteed insurance payments - 37,449
17,698 51,579
Other non-financial liabilities:
Advances received 128,790 60,813
Outstanding payments 49,624 111,851
Provision for unused vacation 28,874 6,015
Taxes pﬂyablc, other than imncome tax 3,433 10,234
Other 7000 8081
R ST Tamgm 19699
Total 235,419 248,573

16. TAXATION
Taxation is performed in accordance with Tax legislatdon of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
Starting from January 1, 2012 insurance companies were transferred from special rax regime to general tax

regime. The Company is taxed by 20% corporate tax on net taxable income. In fact, Authorized body did not
tssue transitional provisions.

Deferred tax balances, calculated by applying the statutory tax rates in effect at the respective reporting dates
to the temporary differences between the tax basts of assets and liabilities and the amounts reported in the
financial statements.

‘Temporary differences as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 mostly were due to difference 1n method of
revenue and expense recognition as well as accounting of value of certain assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
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16. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Below disclosure shows calculation of income tax using official rate of 20% (2012: 20%) on income before

tax expressed in the financial statements and income tax expenses taken into account in financial statements:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Current income tax 42,061 234038
_Deferredincome tax S — _ 644 (16,337)

35,617 217,701
2013 2012
‘Taxable income 465,678 1,003,540
Official rate e - 2% 0%
93,136 200,708

Tax effect from permanent differences
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets from tax loss carry forwards - (8,478)
Interest income from securities (56,808) -
Income from amortization of discount on secutities (2,538) 17,347
_Other B 1,827 8,124
35,617 217,701

Curtently there are several laws that regulates different taxes applied by republic and local authorittes.
Applicable taxes include income tax, social tax and other taxes. Often implementing regulations on normattve
acts are unclear or do not exists and there is little number of precedents. Not frequently there are several
opinions on juridical understanding of acts, between departments as well as in one department that leads to
certain uncertainty and conflict situations.

Deferred income tax assets ate recognized only in case of possibility that future taxable income for which
asset can be used. Deferred income tax assets can be reduced only for amount for which there 15 no
possibility that tax benefit can be realized.

Balance of deferred taxes calculated using tax rate as of reporting date applied to temporary differences
between tax data and amount expressed in financial statements, comprise as of December 31:

In thousands of tenge 2013 Recognized 2012 Recognized 2011
changes in the changes in the
statement of statement of
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for impairment of amounts
receivable - (7,689) 7,689 7,353 336
Reserve on losses related to securities 36,106 10,393 25,713 15,049 10,664
Unused vacation reserve (5,775) (6,978) 1,203 (745) 1,948
Not settled premiums (9,329) 13,041 (22370  (A7900)  (4470)
21,002 8,767 12,235 3,757 8,478
Deferred tax liabilities
_Property, plant and equipment 1779 (2323 4102 4102 -
1,779 (2,323) 4,102 4,102 -
Deferred tax asset / liability 22,781 6,444 16,337 7,859 8,478
Less: unrecognized deferred income
__taxassets on carry forwardlosses - - - 8478  (8478)
22,781 6,444 16,337 16,337 .
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17. SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 share capital consists of 1.100.000 ordinary shares which were tssued
authorized and fully paid. Each ordinary shatre gives one vote and equal when dividends are declared. As of
December 31, 2013 the amount of share capital was 2,130,000 thousands tenge (2012: 2,130,000 thousands
tenge).

18. NET ISURANCE PREMIUMS

In thousands of tenge Annuity General Total as of

insurance insurance  December 31,

contracts contracts 2013

Direct insurance premiums 8,052,623 10,380,702 18.433325
Gross change in unearned premiums provision e (725,822)  (725,822)
 Gross earned premiums on insurance contracts 8,052,623 9,654,880 17,707,503
Outward reinsurance premiums - (4,442 430) (4,442.430)
Change in unearned premiums provision ceded to refnsurers - 4491423 449,123
Premiums ceded to reinsurets on insurance contracts - (3,993,307) (3,993,307)

Net insurance premiums 8,052,623 5,661,573 13,714,196
In thousands of tenge Annuity General Total as of

insurance msurance December 31,

contracts contracts 2012

Ditect insurance premiums 9,607,020 8,827,145 18,434,165
_Gross change in unearned premiums proviston - (4.947.754) __{(4.947.754)
_Gross eatned ptemiums on insurance contracts 9,607,020 3,879,391 13,486,411
Outward reinsurance premiums (2,366) (4,057,175) (4,059,541)
~ Change in unearned premiums provision ceded to reinsurers o - 2,013,695 2,013,095
_Premiums ceded to reinsurers on jnsurance contracts (2,366)  (2,043,480)  (2,045,846)

Net insurance premiums 9,604,654 1,835,911 11,440,565

19. OTHER INCOME INSURANCE, TANTEMA

In 2012 the Company entered into reinsurance agreement on obligatory insurance of employer. Under this
agreement the Company accrued Tantema in amount of 1,996,790 thousands tenge. In 2013 the Company
did not have agreements with stmilar terms.

20. NET INSURANCE BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

In thousands of tenge Annuity General Total as of
insurance mnsurance December 31,

CONLracts contracts 2013

Gross insurance benefits and claims paid (932,030) (1,817,428) (2,749,464)
Insurance benefits and claims reimbursed by remsurers - 80,421 80,421
_ Gross insurance benefits and claims paid ceded to reinsarers - - -
Claims paid, net (932,036) (1,737,007) (2,669,043)
Gross change in insurance contracts liabilities (4,447,307) (3,240,934) (7,688,241)
_ Change in insurance contract labilities ceded to reinsurers B - 387,384 387,384
Net change in insurance contract liabilities o (4,447,307)  (2,853,550)  (7,300,857)

Net benefits and claims (5,379,343) (4,590,557) (9,969,900)
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20. NET INSURANCE BENEFITS AND CLAIMS (CONTINUED)

Tn thousands of tenge Annuity insurance  General insurance Total as of
contracts contracts December 31,
2012

Gross msurance benefits and claims paid (6,657,5406) (85,383) (6,742,929)
Insurance benefits and claims reimbursed by reinsurers -
Gross insurance benefits and claims paid ceded to reinsurers

Claims paid, net (6,657,546) (85,383)  (6,742,929)

Gross change in insutance contracts liabilities (2,505,071) (980,331) (3,485,402)
‘Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers - 12089 12,089
Net change in insurance contract liabilivies__(2505071)  (968,242) _ (3,473,313)
Net benefits and claims (9,162,617) (1,053,625) (10,216,242)

21,  INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income comprise:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
[nterest income:
Amounts due from credit institutions 583,421 224379
Available for sale secutities 165,190 58,715
Held-to-maturity securities 121,465 94,135
Operations on reverse REPO 39,830 2,684
Other o - o o 93 593
Total investment income 910,837 380,506

22.  COMMISSION EXPENSE

Commission expense comprise:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Insurance companies, brokers and intermediaties 2,917,188 1,195,026

Agents _ B 280,738 444,058
Total commission expense 3,197,926 1,639,084

23,  OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses comprise:
In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Professional service 139,395 55,919
Materials 85,557 26,166
Rent 75,028 52,321
Repairs and maintenance 47,422 5,252
Compensation for termination of contract 37,838 -
Amortization and depreciation 26,356 21,413
Communication 21,868 20,478
Transportation 18,811 14,864
Bank service 17,631 21,156
Utilities 9,890 4,831
Business trips 9,607 5,966
Martketing 8,988 12,986
Organtzation of events 7,299 4,124
Education expense 4,736 61,620
Obligatory contribution to Ffund of guaranteed insurance payments (24,638) 176,809
Othet o o %1849 12451

517,637 496,356
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23.  OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Compensation for termination of contract
In 2013 the Company terminated reinsurance contract with Hannover Ruckversicherung AG (Germany). On

May 1, 2013 the termination contract was conducted under which the Company should pay compensation in
amount of 250,000 USD or 37,838 thousands of tenge.

Obligatory contribution to Fund of guaranteed insurance benefils

In 2013 the Company performed recalculation of obligatory contributions to Fund of guaranteed tnsurance
payments JSC due to changes in official rates, used in calculation of contributions, from 2% to 1%, from
which overpayment was accrued that was recognized as income in amount of 24,648 thousands of tenge. As

of December 31, 2013 the overpayment on obligatory contribution compromised 54,734 thousands of tenge,
which was recognized as advance and included in other assets (Note 13).

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1 egal

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management
believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have a materal
adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of the Company.

Tascation

Kazakhstani commercial and tax legislation may lead to different opinions and can be retroactive. Moreover,
the management’s interpretation of tax legislation may differ interpretation of tax authorities, operations can
be disputed by the tax authorities that can lead fees and penalties. The management believes all tax payments
were paid and there is no need for any reserves in the financial statements. Tax authorities can tnspect
company’s tagation for the last five years.

Pension

In accordance with Kazakhstani legislation the Company’s personnel receive pension from pension fund. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company does not have any obligation to pay additional pension

payments, medical service after retirement, insurance payments or any other benefits after retirement of its
current and former employees.

Lease
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company does not have any obligations related to lease.
Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company does not have any obligation related to capitalized costs.
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25.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is calculated as cost at which financial instruments can be purchased at trade between
knowledgeable, willing to make such deal, independent, except cases of forced or liquidation sale.

In thousands of tenge December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value
_Assets measured at fairvalwe o S
[nvestments available-for-sale 3,545,830 3,545,830 1,720,923 1,720,923
Assets for which fair values are disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 295,177 295,177 420,755 420,755
Amounts due from credit mstitutions 11,141,916 11,141,916 5,630,627 5,630,627
Reverse REPO operations 1,064,499 1,064,499 - -
[1eld-to-maturity investment securities 1,497,154 1,460,368 1,367,632 1,091,064
_Insurance and reinsurance recewvables 2,246,726 2246,726 2,689,631 2,689,631
“Total - 19791302 19754516 1,829,568 11,553,000
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed - - o e
Insurance and reinsurance payables 838,674 838,674 515,883 515,883
~ Other financial liabilities 17,698 17698 51,579 51,579
Total 856,372 856,372 567,462 567,462
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is defined as follows:
. fair value of financial assets and liabilities on standard terms, traded on active liquid markets are

determined in accordance with market quotations (including quoted in an active market term bonds,
notes and perpetual notes);

. fair value of other financial assets and liabilities (excluding derivatives) is defined in accordance with
commonly accepted cost calculation models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices used
in market transactions on the relevant date, and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The Company uses the following hietarchical structure of methods for determining and disclosing the fair
value of financial instruments:

Level 1: quotes (not corrected) on active markets of similar assets or liabilities;

. Level 2: valuation models all initial data of which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that ate directly or indirectly based on information observed on market;
. Level 3: valuation models, using initial data, which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value

that are not based on information observed on market.

In thousands of tenge Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31,
2013
Assets measured at fair value
Investments available-for-sale 3,545,723 107 - 3,545,830
_Assets for which fair values are disclosed L
Cash and cash equivalents 295,177 - - 295,177
Amounts due from credit institutions 11,141,916 - - 11,141,916
Reverse REPO operations 1,064,499 - - 1,064,499
Held-to-maturity investment sccurities 1,497,154 - - 1,497,154
_Insurance and reinsurance receivables - 2246726 - 2,246,726
Trowl CAnsaaey 2,246,833 19791302
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed , e
Insurance and reinsurance payables - 838,674 - 838,674
_ Other financial liabilittes - - 17,698 - 17,098
Total - 856,372 - 856,372
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25.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

In thousands of tenge Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31,
2012
Assets measured at fair value
Investments available-fot-sale 1,720,816 107 - 1,720,923
_Assets for which fair values are disclosed e
Cash and cash equivalents 7 - ‘420?755\ ' N o - 420,755
Amounts due from credit institutions 5,630,627 - - 5,630,627
Held-to-maturity investment securities 1,367,632 - - 1,367,632
_Insurance and reinsurance receivables - 2689631 - 2689631
Total ) 9139830 2689738 - 11,829,568
Liabilities fot which fair values ate
disclosed
Insurance and reinsurance payables - 515,883 - 515,883
Other financial liabilities - 51,579 - 51,579
Total - 567,462 - 567,462

During the year there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.
Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments value of which estimated using methodology for which initial data is on the market,
are represented by currency forward contracts. Mostly used methodologies of estimation includes models for
estimation of price of forwards and swops that use calculation of present value. Models includes different
initial data, including credit quality of counteragents, forwards and spot-currencies as well as curves of mterest
rates.

The following describes methodologies and assumptions, used in estimation of fair value of financial
instruments that are not recognized in financial statement at fair value.

Vinancial instruments with fixed rate

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities with fixed rate that are recognized at amortized cost are valued
using comparison market interest rate at the date of initial recognition of these instruments with cutrent
market rates of similar financial instruments.

26. RISK MANAGEMNT

Risk management is critical to the insurance business and is one of the key clements of the Company. The
main risks inherent to the Company ate insurance tisk, investment risk, credit risk, market risk associated with
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates, and liquidity risk. A description of the Company's
policies for managing these risks is set below.

Insurance policies

The company sets rules and limits on insurance that specify who and how much risk can take and to what
amount. Monitoring of these limits are performed by underwriting department on a permanent basts.

The Company's insurance is covered on the entire territory of Kazakhstan. The company’s portfolio of
reinsurance in respect to geographical concentration is diversified across foreign reinsurers.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

26. RISK MANAGEMNT (CONTINUED)
Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
or the timing thercof, differs from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of
claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the
Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well
as the use of remsurance arrangements.

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risk mitigation program. Reinsurance ceded is placed on
both a proportional and non-proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota-share
reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company to certain classes of business.
Non-proportional reinsurance is primarily excess-of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company's net
exposure to catastrophe losses. Retention limits for the excess-of-loss reinsurance vary by product line and
territory.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance
atrangements, it is not relieved from its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists
with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under
such reinsurance agreements.

The Company’s loss ratio comprises:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Loss ratio, life insurance %o 0%
Loss ratio, general insurance 96% 96%

The table below sets out the concentration of the claims liabilities by type of contract:

In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net amount
contract share as of

liabilities December 31,

2013

Life msurance 1,488,843 - 1,488,843
Obligatory and voluntary insurance from accidents 9,908,392 (2,862,291) 7,046,101
Annuity tnsurance 7193375 - 7193375
Total 18,590,610 (2,862,291) 15,728,319
In thousands of tenge Insurance Reinsuret’s Net amount
contract share as of

Labilities December 31,

2012

Life insurance 860,761 - 860,761
Obligatory and voluntary insurance from accidents 5,941,636 (2,025,784) 3,915,852
_Annuity insurance 5 - 3374150 - 3374150
Total 10,176,547 (2,025,784) 8,150,763




LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

26. RISK MANAGEMNT (CONTINUED)
Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into obligatory reinsurance treaties with local and
foreign reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of credit risks or
economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurers’
insolvencies.

Insurance reserves

The Company uses actuarial methods and assumption in estimation of insurance and reinsurance ltabilities.
Insurance reserves are disclosed in Notes 11 and 20. The Company performs analysis of changes in such
reserves.

Investment risk

The Company follows a number of principles in its investment policies based on the level of return, and level
of accepted risk in appropriate petiod of time. KKazakh insurance companies are highly regulated by insurance
supervisors and are not allowed to act as a professional participant in the securities’ market. For this reason,
the Company performs its investment activity through a brokerage company, which carries out such
investment operations on the Company’s behalf.

The Companys Investment portfolio consist of financial instruments that are selected in based on
profitability, maturity and level of investment risk. Formed in such way portfolio provides steady income for
the period of investment. [nvestment income usually is reinvested in order to increase the value of portfolio.

Key assumptions
Life insurance contracts

Material judgment is required in determining the liabilities and in the choice of assumptions. Assumptions in
use are based on past experience, current internal data, external market indices and benchmarks which reflect
cutrent observable market prices and other published information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are
determined at the date of valuation and no credit is taken for possible beneficial effects of voluntary
withdrawals. Assumptions are further evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and
reasonable valuations.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are as follows:

Mortality rates

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written.
They reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s own
experience. An appropriate, but not excessive, prudent allowance is made for expected future improvements.

Assumptions are differentiated by sex, age and contract type.

An increase in rates will lead to increase of losses, which will increase the expenditure and decrease profits for
the shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fixcpenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and
associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base, adjusted
for expected expense inflation if appropriate. An increase in the level of expenses would result in increase of
liabilities thereby decreasing profits for the shareholders.

Discount rate

Life insurance liabilitics are determined as the sum of discounted value of the expected benefits and future
administration expenses directly related to the contract, less discounted value of the expected premiums that
would be required to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rates are based on the current industry risk
rates, adjusted for the Company’s own risk exposure.

A decrease in the discount rates will increase the value of the insurance liability and therefore reduce profits
for the shareholders.

Sensitrvity

The analysis which follows is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net insurance contract liabilities and profit
before tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims
liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on
an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear.

December 31, 2013

In thousands of tenge Change in Increase/ Increase/ Impact on
assumptions (decrease) on (decrease) on profit before
gross insurance net jnsurance tax

contract contract

liabilities liabilities
Mortality 20% (90,390) (90,390) 90,390
Expenses 20% (133,987) (133,987) 133,987
Discount rate -10% 703,629 703,629 (703,629)
Indexation of insurance payments -20% (175,489) (175,489) 175,489

The effect on gross and net insurance contract liabilitics due to changes in assumptions is the same since life
insurance reserves ceded to reinsurers is not calculated.

December 31, 2012

In thousands of tenge Change in Increase/ Increase/ Impact on
assumptions (decrease) on (decrease) on profit before
gross insurance net insurance tax

contract contract

liabilities liabilities
Mortality 20% (260,458) (260,458) 260,458
Lxpenses 20% (87,322) (87,322) 87,322
Discount rate -10% 523,601 523,601 (523,601)
Indexation of insurance payments -10% (306,830) (36,830) 36,830

36



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC
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FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

26.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimates is the Company’s future claims development will
follow a similar pattern to past claims development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of
average claim costs, claim handling costs and claim numbers for each accident year.

For insurance contracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims incurred but not settled and
claims incurred but not reported by policyholders, IBNR) are established to cover the ultimate cost of
settling the liabilities in respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on information available
at the reporting date, including potential outstanding loss notifications, experience with similar claims and
case law at the reporting date. The Company has used all possible and curtently available information to
estimate provision for claims reported by policyholders including claims’ adjustment expenses according to
every class of insurance contract.

As of December 31, 2013 the Company does not have enough statistical data for calculation of other

msurance risks.

Credit risk

The Company regulatly monitors repayment of receivables for insurance and reinsurance. In the financial
statements there are reserves for all doubtful amounts. Reinsurance counterparties are reliable insurers,

The maxcimum excposnre 1o credit visk

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company may significantly vary depending on the individual
risks of certain assets and general market risks.

For financial assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of these assets
before the effect of mitigation through the use of netting or collateral.

The following table details the financial assets of the Company's credit ratings by Standard and Poor’s, Fitch’s
and Moody's as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

In thousands of tenge «BBB-» to «BB-» to «B»to«B+»  Credit risk not  December 31,
«BBB+» «BB+» assigned 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 899 36,358 129,759 128,161 295,177
Amounts due from credit
institutions 1,906,750 2,070,080 7,165,086 - 11,141,916
Reverse REPO operations 1,064,499 - - - 1,064,499
Available-for-sale
investment secutities 1,385,806 2,037,158 32,350 90,516 3,545,830
Held-to-maturity
investment securities 769,849 485,088 91,635 150,582 1,497,154
Insurance and reinsurance
_ recetvables o - - - 2,246,726 2,246,726
5,127,803 4,628,684 7,418,830 2,615,985 19,791,302
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26. RISKMANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk (continned)

In thousands of tenge «BBB-» to «BB-» to «B»to«B+»  Credit risk not  December 31,
«BBB+» «BB+» assigned 2012
Cash and cash equivalents - 134,958 285,636 161 420,755
Amounts due from credit
institutions 1,185,987 4,213,240 231,400 5,630,627
Available-for-sale
mvestment secutitics 394,290 438,382 786,937 101,314 1,720,923
Held-to-maturity
mvestment securities 50,124 879,426 284,097 153,985 1,367,632
[nsurance and reinsurance
receivables - - 2,689,631 2,689,631
1,630,401 1,452,766 5,569,910 3,176,491 11,829,568

Organization of the insurance industry is generally exposed to credit risk related to financial instruments.
Company's credit risk 1s concentrated in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The exposure is monitored in order to
ensure compliance with the limits on financial instruments and creditworthiness with guidelines established

by the Company's risk management policy.

The following table shows the carrying value of impaired assets and unimpaired assets that are classified as

past due debt:

In thousands of tenge Cutrent assets  Financial assets Impaired December 31,
impaited pastdue, financial assets 2013

unimpaired
Cash and cash equivalents 295,177 - - 295177
Amounts due from credit institutions 11,141,916 - - 11,141,916
Reverse REPO operations 1,064,499 - 1,064,499
Avatlable-for-sale investment securitics 3,545,830 - - 3,545,830
Held-to-maturity investment securities 1,497,154 - 178,851 1,676,005
_Insurance and reinsurance receivables 2,246,726 - - 2,246,726
19,791,302 178,851 19,970,153
In thousands of tenge Current assets  Financial assets Impaired  December 31,
impaired past due,  financial assets 2013

unimpaired
Cash and cash equivalents 420,755 - - 420,755
Amounts due from credit institutions 5,630,627 - - 5,630,627
Available-for-sale investment securitics 1,720,923 - - 1,720,923
Held-to-maturity investment securities 1,367,632 - 165,330 1,532,962

Insurance and reinsurance receivables 2,689,631 - ) - 2,689,631

11,829,568 - 165,330 11,994,898
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26.  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Geographical concentration

The geographical concentration of Company’s assets and liabilities is presented below:

In thousands of tenge Kazakhstan OECD December 31,
countries 2013
Asscets:
Cash and cash equivalents 295,177 - 295,177
Amounts due from credit mstitutions 11,141,916 - 11,141,916
Reverse REPO operations 1,004,499 - 1,064,499
Available-for-sale investment securities 3,545,830 - 3,545,830
Held-to-maturity investment securities 1,497,154 - 1,497,154
[nsurance and reinsurance recervables 2246726 - 2,246,726
_Total financialassets oo 97e302 - 19,791,302
Liabilities:
Insurance and reinsurance payables 682,722 155,952 838,674
_ Other financial liabflites 17698 - 17,698
T'otal financial Liabilitics 700,420 155,952 856,372
In thousands of tenge Kazakhstan OECD December 31,
countries 2013
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 420,755 - 420,755
Amounts due from credit institutions 5,630,627 - 5,630,627
Available-for-sale investment sccurities 1,720,923 - 1,720,923
Held-to-matutity investment securitics 1,367,632 - 1,367,632
_Insurance and reinsurance receivables - 2,689,631 - 2,689,631
Total financialassets 1182958 - 11,829,568
Liabilities:
Insurance and reinsurance payables 491,606 24,277 515,883
 Other financial lnbilities o ssl 51,579
Total financial liabilitics 543,185 24,277 567,462

Liquidity risk

Liquudity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financtal
instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets quickly at thetr fair
values; ot a counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or insurance lability falling due for
payment earlier than expected; or 1nability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The main liquidity risk facing the company is the daily demands on its available cash resources in respect to
claims arising under insurance contracts.

The Company manages liquidity risk through the Company's policy on liquidity risk management, which
defines what is liquidity risk for the Company, establishes minimum reserve funds to meet emergency
demands for payment, establishes contingency funding plans, identifies sources of funding and the events
that lead to the action plan, the concentration of funding sources, reporting on exposure to hiquidity risk and
violations to the supervisory authorities, monitoring of compliance with the policy on liquidity tisk and
review of policies for managing liquidity risk, compliance with the significance and with the changes in
environmental conditions.
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LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY NOMAD LIFE JSC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (CONTINUED)

26. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Company does not include insurance reserves in analysis of liquidity, including amounts from reinsures
classified as reinsurers’ assets, due to fact that reserves do not have estimated maturity date. Moreover, actual
amount may differ {from reserve amount and are not included in the table above.

Market risk

The Company is also subject to market risk related to open positions in interest rate and currency influenced
by general and specific fluctuations on matket. The Company manage market risk by periodic estimate of
potential expenses resulted from negative changes in market conditions, as well as setting and support of
adequate limits on allowable losses and requirements in regard to rate of return.

In thousands of tenge December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Change in Change in Change in Change 1n
market price market price market price market price
- 10% % 10%  -10%
Impact of on equity 354,583 (354,583) 172,092 (172,092)

Currency risk

In 2013 the financial assets were denominated in Tenge. Cutrency risk 1s the risk of change in value of
financial instrument due to changes in foreign exchange rates that have effect on financial position and cash
flow. As of reporting date most of the financial assets and liabilities were denominated in foreign currency,
effect from change in foreign cutrency was non-significant on the statement of comprehenstve income.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but
by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company
is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorization and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of the internal audit.

27.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with [AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form. Related parties may enter into transactions
which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between related parties may not be effected on the same
terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated patties.

Related patties or operations with related parties in accordance with definition under IFRS 24 “Related party

Disclosure” are shown below. During considetation of existence of related party transactions attention 1s
paid to nature of the relationships and not only to juridical relationships.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
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27.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and January 1, 2011 the Company had the following related party
transactions:

‘The outstanding balances of related party transactions are as follows:

In thousands of tenge December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Operations  Total category Operations  Total category

with related  as per financial with related  as per financial

parties statements _parties statements

Insurance and reinsurance payables 36,565 838,674 1,083 515,883

- other related parties - 36565 - 1,083 -
Other liabilities - 2531 235419 0 322 248,573

- other related parties 2,121 - 185 -
-y manggoment persomnelof the Company M0~ 13 .

Unearned premiums reserve - 5,685,973 2,872 4,960,151

In the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 the following
amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties were retlected:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Operations  Total category Operations Operations
with related  as per financial with related with related
~ patties statements parties parties
_Gross earned premiums . 385 18,433,325 2 18,434,165
- oher related parties 154 - 2 -
_ - key management personnel of the Company 23] - =
_Premium ceded to reinsurers e (4442,430) 644,790 (4,059,541)
_-other related parties . 644790
Paid claims, gross e 24946y - (6,742,929)
_Payroll and other expenses o 52068 (472,519) 83,041 (353,422)
- key mandgement personiel of the Comiparny o 52168 - 53041 -
_Administrative and operating expenses 44,309 (517,637) o (496,356)
- other related parties 2,121 - -
- key management personiiel of the Company 42,188 - -

Wages, salaries and other benefits paid to key management personnel represent the short term compensation.
28.  SOLVENCY MARGIN ADEQUACY RATIO

Regulatory solvency ratio

The Financial Market Supervision Committee (the “FMSC”) requires insurance companies to maintain
solvency margin at the level of no less than one, which is calculated based on the financial statements of the

Company prepared in accordance with the FMSC instructions. As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
Company complies with the solvency margins adequacy ratio which is as in the following table:

In thousands of tenge 2013 2012
Actual solvency margin 2,710,550 1,203,995
~ Minimum solvency margin - - - 1,440,889 1,100,661
Solvency matrgin 1.88 1.09
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29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 11, 2014 the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan decided not to maintain an exchange
rate of tenge at its level. Thus, the dollar and curo rates as of date of the approval of these financial
statements equal to 182.06 tenge and increased by 20%. The devaluation has no significant cffect on the
financial statements as of December 31, 2013 and for the year then ended.
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